MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE NOBEL SCHOOL BOARD OF GOVERNORS
HELD AT THE SCHOOL ON MONDAY 13 OCTOBER 2025 AT 6.30PM

Governors Present: Matthew Reah (Chair), Samuel Appiah, Sophie Cowan, Chris Crawley,
Samuel Dwamena, Callum Green, Jamie Kellett, Mark Laws, Jackie Mordaunt, Richa Nair,
Shannon Parr, Rav Phagura (Headteacher), Helen Sparks, and Rev. Kojo Wood.

Also in Attendance: Jacquie Watts (Clerk), plus Naomi Rose (Deputy Head), Nik Thomas
(Business Manager) and Sam Head and Corinna Reeder (for part of the meeting)

(NB: Governor Challenge, Questions and Monitoring are highlighted in bold)
Action By:

To receive any apologies for absence and decide whether to consent to the same

NOTED: the meeting was quorate. Apologies for absence were received from Claire
Sutton and Rose Odudu because of work commitments.

AGREED: to accept apologies for absence received from Claire Sutton and Rose
Odudu.

AOB
AGREED: a change to Link Governor Roles would be considered as AOB.

NOTED: Callum Green and Richa Nair were welcomed to their first meeting and invited
to introduce themselves.

For governors to declare any potential conflicts of interest re. items on the agenda

NOTED: there were no declarations.

Action Tracker

NOTED: the current version of the Action Tracker as uploaded with the agenda. There
were no further updates.

Minutes of Previous Meetings - Foundation Committee and Governing Board.

NOTED: the provisional minutes of the Foundation Committee meeting held on 22
September 2025 as uploaded with the agenda.

AGREED: to receive the minutes and ratify actions taken.

NOTED: the provisional minutes of the previous Governing Board meeting held on 2 July
2025 as uploaded with the agenda.

AGREED: the minutes of the Governing Board meeting held on 2 July 2025 as a true Clerk
and correct record. They would be signed by the Chair and passed to the school for safe
keeping.

Examination Results and Pupil Performance Data (agenda item 8)

NOTED: this item was taken out of agenda order to enable Sam Head and Corinna
Reeder to leave the meeting early.

Governing Board Page 1 of 9 13 October 2025



NOTED: the examination results and pupil performance data report as uploaded that
morning. Sam Head provided an oral commentary. He stressed that results could not be
compared to SATs forecast outcomes because of the SATs hiatus caused by Covid.
Broadly, results were similar to previous years with a few dips. It was a solid set of
results, but the school was disappointed it had not managed to demonstrate stronger
continued improvement.

NOTED: KS5 results were broadly in line with previous years and were mostly above
national average. Boys performed less well, lowering the results overall. A similar dip
was not predicted for 25/26, given a different cohort of pupils. Whilst there was still a gap
in performance for SEN and PP pupils, results were above national average. Governors
acknowledged the impossibility of comparing results against previous SATs
scores, but asked if the results were considered to be a fair reflection of known
pupil abilities? Sam Head reiterated the complexities relating to the SATs position.
Governors asked if there was anything in the results that was causing the school
to rethink the SDP? The school did not feel there was and reiterated that the boys'
position was not likely to be repeated. A governor commented that attendance at
exams was very positive. The Chair highlighted that, as the report had been
received too late for detailed review, governors should submit further questions to| All
Sam Head by email.

NOTED: Corinna Reeder provided a further oral commentary on the KS5 results. Whilst
the average point score had increased, it was disappointing that the average grade for A
Levels had not. Vocational results had been very positive. The school aim was for every
pupil to be working towards an intended destination. Achieved destinations were shared,
though some governors experienced problems reading the chart provided. Some

individual good news stories were shared. A more legible destinations chart would be SH/ CR
shared with governors when available.

Sam Head and Corinna Reeder left the meeting at this point

Head's Introduction and Update (agenda item 6)

NOTED: the Headteacher provided an oral update on her visits to the school over the
summer and her resultant priorities and vision. When talking to staff, she had asked
them which aspects of school life they would most like to keep. Answers included: being
a Nobellian, taking care of one another, school uniform, behaviour and culture. She did
not intend to make significant changes to school policies, but wanted to focus on
consistency in application. She believed every member of staff had a role in setting high
expectations of pupils and staff, modelling the same, challenging poor behaviour and
applying school policies fairly and consistently. She had shared this view with all school
staff.

NOTED: staff had been supportive over the approach towards pupil detentions. Pupil
behaviour and culture set the standard for everything, including learning, and the school
was going through a recalibration of expectations. Some areas of school life needed
more recalibration than others.

NOTED: the school's aim was the pursuit of excellence and to be well above average.
The Head highlighted the large number of pupils who had not received a single
behaviour point. Where parents were unhappy at the school focus, she was meeting with
them to explain the stance being taken.

NOTED: an SLT strategic day was being planned to enable the team to consider
approaches and fine tune the school's SDP. Governors asked questions about areas

Governing Board Page 2 of 9 13 October 2025




where consistency of approach was felt to be weakest. The Head identified
communication and policy implementation.

NOTED: the Head shared details of future changes at SLT level because of promotions
and personal priorities. Governors commented that the staff leaving the school
would be a considerable loss and asked whether they would be replaced, given
the school's financial position? Acknowledging the national timetable for resignations
and the school's financial needs, the Head advised that she would be considering all
options and the financial context before determining a way forward.

Safeguarding Report (agenda item 7)

NOTED: the report uploaded with the agenda. It had subsequently been updated to
correct some typographical errors and to include the voice of the Safeguarding Link
governor. The Link Governor highlighted his recent meeting with the Deputy Head
and his insight into the good work the school was undertaking. Governors asked if
the number of CLA pupils was considered to be high? Number had increased in
recent years, but the current figure was holding steady and was not considered to be
unduly high.

NOTED: all governors present confirmed they had read and understood at least part | of
the 2025 KCSIE document, though some had read the whole document. However,
some governor safeguarding training was out of date. The school was attempting to
provide suitable sessions, including one in the evening for governors who could not
attend training sessions held during the day.

Parent Survey 24/25 - Feedback

NOTED: as noted at the July Governing Board meeting, the parent survey deadline had
been extended until the end of the summer term to capture more feedback. This had
proved beneficial in terms of the number of responses received. While the quantity of
responses had increased, the nature of responses was broadly the same. 92% of pupils
felt safe at school. 70% had not experienced bullying. There was however, a decrease in
the number of parents who felt the school made them aware of their child's learning.
Although numbers had declined, the school had not changed its methods of
communication. It would therefore try a range of new methods to keep parents informed.

NOTED: the response from SEND parents was still an area for improvement. 38% felt
their child was not getting support needed. It was possible this reflected the situation at
County Level, as much, or more than, at the school.

NOTED: governors asked if the school could identify the 6 parents who felt
strongly their child was not safe? The survey was confidential, so they could not be
identified. The planned pupil survey, however, was not confidential, and any concerns
about safety would be followed up then. A governor suggested that the addition of a
comment box might enable parents to explain why they felt so strongly.
Governors asked how the school might increase feedback further? The school was
planning on holding three shorter surveys across the year, rather than one long one in
the Summer Term (and would also do this for pupil and staff surveys). A governor
suggested it might be more meaningful to conduct surveys by year groups. The
school felt it was worth considering, but would want to establish meaningful baselines
first. Data from current surveys could identify year group responses. The staff governor
highlighted that the sixth form survey was tailored to the sixth form experience.

Governing Board Page 3 of 9 13 October 2025




School Development Plan

NOTED: the report uploaded with the agenda. Themes from the 24/25 SDP had been
carried over into 25/26, including homework and strengthening parental engagement.
The plan might be fine-tuned following the SLT strategic day, but significant change was
not expected. For the next Board meeting, Naomi Rose was hoping to provide a video of
staff talking about key areas of the SDP. The Chair requested that input be aligned
with the termly Head's report.

NR

11.

Annual Equal Opportunities Report 24/25

NOTED: the report uploaded with the agenda. Nik Thomas summarised the data
breakdown of staff and pupils. The data related to 2025, not 2024/25.

NOTED: the staff age profile was getting younger. The gender breakdown of staff groups
was discussed. SEND students now formed 24.1% of the pupil body, following an
increase over the last couple of years. This was above national average. DA and PP
performance had been discussed under the item on examination results. No data was
available on enrichment activities and school clubs had only recently been launched for
the year. Ethnicity data for staff and pupils was broadly comparable to that of North
Hertfordshire. A governor queried potential culture gaps where there were no staff
representative of a particular group of students? The school felt that the recently
created Religious Festival Club would lead to greater staff awareness of cultural and
spiritual needs. Monitoring had not identified any negative issues for pupil groups without
a member of staff from the same cultural background. The Head suggested the school
might consider broadening the pupil survey to identify any issues.

NOTED: governors asked if the percentage of SEND pupils could be compared
with the local average or figures for nearby schools? Data was not currently
available, but Nik Thomas said he would investigate what local SEND data was
available. Rav Phagura felt it was something that might be discussed with local Heads,
whilst highlighting that the school was prompt in identifying pupil SEND issues, leading
to a large number of SEND pupils from the start of the year.

NT

12.

School Finances

NOTED: the multiple reports uploaded with the agenda. Staff pay awards had been
agreed nationally at an earlier stage than usual and had therefore been factored into the
budget figures. Nik Thomas summarised some of the recent changes to the staffing
budget. Forecast expenditure had increased, leading to a forecast balanced budget.
Governor approval of the term 1 figures was sought to enable submission to HCC.
Governors asked questions about the report ,including the £71k in-year surplus
predicted for 26/27, the potential impact of a hard winter on school energy costs
and whether the School Business Manager was confident a balanced budget
outturn could be maintained? Nik Thomas was reasonably confident that a balanced
budget could be maintained, although the outcomes of a hard winter added an element
of uncertainty.

AGREED: the Term 1 finance report for submission to HCC

NOTED: the cash monitoring report was reviewed and discussed. The position was tight,
but above the previous lowest historical point. HCC had indicted it was willing to bring
forward scheduled funding payments to assist with the cashflow. A governor queried
the amount concerned and was advised it was £662k. It would be an advance, not a
loan. There was unlikely to be an issue with the cashflow until March 2026. Nik Thomas

would review the situation around the February half-term period. Governors noted his

Governing Board Page 4 of 9 13 October 2025




reluctance to produce a cashflow forecast before then, but suggested it could be
done using budget figures. Such a forecast would enable governors to track
progress, but they would not hold the school to it, given the imprecise estimates it
contained.

AGREED: Nik Thomas would produce a cashflow forecast using budget figures, for
discussion with the Finance Working Group and the Foundation Committee

NOTED: the aged debtors list and the small amount now owed by a previous hirer of the
school premises. It was hoped it would be paid-off shortly.

NOTED: the termly lettings income, which was down on the previous year's figure by
£4200.

NOTED: the Schedule of Financial Delegation had been reformatted, but was largely
unchanged from the previous version. It would eventually be updated in light of new
procurement regulations, but approval of the current version was sought.

AGREED: the Schedule of Financial Delegation as submitted. Procurement changes to
be discussed with the Finance Working Group for formal delegated approval by the
Foundation Committee.

NOTED: approval of the Financial Procedures Handbook had been delayed to permit
various sections to be rewritten and staff to be trained in the new procurement
regulations. Changes would be discussed with the Finance Working Group and
submitted to the Foundation Committee.

NOTED: the HCC letter regarding the school's financial position and the Chair's
response to the same. Governors felt the response was clear and constructive. A
governor reminded the meeting that the LA had the right to remove delegated
financial responsibility from schools. Governors asked that feedback on the
school's financial position be shown against the recovery plan provided to HCC. A
governor asked if HCC had ever responded to the Chair's letter? No response had
been received. Governors commented on the opportunities register and asked if
there were sufficient savings opportunities available for a balanced 25/26 budget
to be maintained in the event of unexpected circumstances such as a hard winter?
Nik Thomas felt a balanced budget could be maintained, but pointed out that the register
contained long-term options, not quick fixes.

NT

NT

NT

13.

ICT Asset Disposal Report

NOTED: there was no ICT assets disposal report. Governors asked if that meant
there were no assets to be disposed of? Nik Thomas confirmed there was ICT kit
awaiting disposal, but there had been no time to process it.

14.

School Admissions

NOTED: the 2027/28 admissions arrangements uploaded with the agenda. The
documents remained unchanged from the previous year.

AGREED: 2027/28 admission arrangements as uploaded in keeping with those for
2026/27.

15.

Approval of Policies

Governing Board Page 5 of 9 13 October 2025




NOTED: the policies listed on the agenda in keeping with the agreed agenda schedule,
and the policies uploaded for approval.

15.1 Child Protection Policy - this had been commented on online and a majority of
governors had approved it.

AGREED: the Child Protection Policy as uploaded.
15.2 Children Looked After - approval of this policy had been delegated to the school.

15.3 PAR - a copy of the policy had not been uploaded. The school advised it was not
currently available and would be brought forward to a future meeting.

15.4 Business Continuity/ Emergency Response Plan - these were the same
document and had been approved by the September 2025 meeting of the Foundation
Committee.

15.5 Attendance - this had been commented on online and a majority of governors had
approved it.

AGREED: the Attendance Policy as uploaded with the agenda.

15.6 Behaviour and Learning - this was currently being reviewed and would be
brought forward to the next meeting

NOTED: in response to a question from governors about the number of
outstanding policies on the Policy Tracker, the school advised that a number of
policies delegated to the school were being reviewed and in hand, but had not been
signed off yet. A governor said she found the listing of documents to be approved
online confusing and asked for it to be made clearer on the agenda.

AGREED: the Clerk would consider the policies section of the new agenda format to see
if further clarity could be provided.

Clerk/
Charlotte
Harnetty

Clerk/
NR

Clerk

16.

Health and Safety Update

NOTED: the report uploaded with the agenda. There had been three unavoidable
accidents since the start of term. A periodic site inspection would take place later that
term. Work on the gas store was in hand.

17.

School Business Plan

NOTED: the current School Business Plan as considered by the Foundation Committee
at its September meeting. There were no further questions.

18.

General Careers and PP Updates

NOTED: the performance of PP pupils had been discussed elsewhere on the agenda.
Samual Appiah, as the PP link governor, would be visiting the school the following
day.

NOTED: Jamie Kellett, as the Careers Link Governor, had visited the school the
previous week. He summarised his discussions with key staff. In particular, the
school needed more work experience placements. He asked if governors were
able to provide additional placements or details of organisations that could be

approached for them? Many placements were found via the Nobel alumni

Governing Board Page 6 of 9 13 October 2025




association and he queried whether there was succession planning for Barry
Burningham who currently led the association?

AGREED: Rav Phagura would consider succession planning for the alumni association
and a possible closer link to the schools careers offer.

RP

19.

Governance Administration

19.1 Annual Register of Business and Pecuniary Interest - all governors present had
completed their annual declarations. Copies of the form would be sent to those who
were absent. Once all returns had been received by the Clerk she would complete the
governor information sheet for eventual publication on the school website.

19.2 Personal Details Form - Nik Thomas advised this would be handled electronically
this year. In the next two to three weeks governors could expect to receive an email
asking them to check their details as held by the school and complete the data
declaration.

19.3 Governor Code of Conduct - all governors present had agreed to follow the Code
of Conduct and signed a copy of the Code to this affect. Copies of the Code would be
sent to those who were absent.

19.4 Governor Profiles 25/26 - the current version of the profiles as uploaded with the
agenda was noted. The clerk had received a revision to the profile for Mark Laws after
the deadline and would add it to the profiles before publication. She would also adjust
the link roles in accordance with any decision made later in the meeting.

AGREED: the 25/26 Governor Profiles, as amended, for publication on the school
website and display within the school.

19.5 Appointment of Associate Member - the individual named on the agenda had
approached the school in July. The clerk had advised him of the appointment process
and the school had attempted to make contact to undertake the necessary safeguarding
checks, but had been unable to make contact. The application was therefore considered
to be withdrawn.

School/
Clerk

School/
All

School

Clerk

20.

Governance Effectiveness

20.1 Governor Attendance Record for 24/25 - as uploaded with the agenda. The
Chair congratulated governors who had achieved 100% actual attendance.

AGREED: the Governor Attendance and Information Record for 24/25 as a true and
correct record for publication on the school website.

20.2 Governor Monitoring and Visits 24/25

NOTED: the SEND visit report uploaded with the agenda and the Health and Safety visit
Report and Annual Visit Record for 24/25 subsequently uploaded once technical issues
had been resolved. The record highlighted areas monitored during the year and also
gaps in the monitoring process.

20.3 Governor Monitoring and Visits 25/26

NOTED: no visit reports had been submitted yet. The Chair asked that all school
visits should be booked via the Head's PA, or at least CC'd to her, to ensure there

was a clear record of visits with no gaps. Governors asked to be advised of the

Clerk

Governing Board Page 7 of 9 13 October 2025




dates of school events in good time to enable them to attend. The school
highlighted the 6th Form open evening in October.

AOB - Governor Link Roles 25/26

AGREED: Callum Green would take over the Well Being and Mental Health link from
Helen Sparks. Richa Nair would take over Culture of Scholarship from Claire Sutton. The
Chair would update the link governor record for 25/26, updating any titles to match
wording in the School SDP

AGREED: revised 25/26 link roles as follows:

DA and Pupil
Samuel Appiah Premium
3. Achievement
Sophie Cowan for All
Health and Business &
Christine Crawley Safety Finance
Samuel Dwamena SEND
Wellbeing and
Callum Green Mental Health

Careers and

Jamie Kellett Community 4. Enriching Lives Sustainability
Safeguarding
(including
Prevent)
Mark Laws and Behaviour
1. Culture of
Richa Nair Scholarship
2. Responsive
Rose Odudu Teaching
Shannon Parr Governor Training
Equality,
Diversity, and
Helen Sparks Inclusion

Claire Sutton
Kojo Wood Sixth Form
Matt Reah Whistleblowing

20.4 Governor Training/ Annual Review of Governor Training 24/25

NOTED: the updated governor training record as uploaded with the agenda. A folder
was available on SharePoint/ TEAMS for governors to upload records/ certificates of
training undertaken. Details in there would be added to the training record. An annual
training review had not been undertaken as the matter would be considered as part of
the following item.

Governing Board Page 8 of 9 13 October 2025




20.5 Annual Review of Governor Effectiveness 24/25 - Creation of Governance
Effectiveness Working Group

NOTED: the report uploaded with the agenda recommending the creation of a revised
\Working Group with broader terms of reference including governor skills audit,
succession planning and governor training review. A governor asked if the group was
at risk of "marking its own homework"? The previous group had at least been able
to draw on the clerk's knowledge of other governing bodies to broaden its view.
The Chair recommended tightening up basic processes prior to considering
whether HfL could be retained to undertake a review/ governance audit. The Clerk
suggested it might be possible to benchmark against another similar school or undertake
a mutual peer review. The meeting discussed what other schools in the area might be
considered similar and whether DfE benchmarking data might help to identify one.

AGREED: the formation of a new Governance Effectiveness Working Group as per the
uploaded TOR. Membership would be: Sophie Cowan, Mark Laws, Shannon Parr. The
group would also consider the possibility of benchmarking/ peer review with another
school.

21. |AOB
NOTED: this had been discussed as part of item 20 above.
22. |Date of Next Meeting

AGREED: the date of the next scheduled meeting of the Board of Governors as
Monday, 15 December 2025 at 6.30pm via TEAMS.

NOTED: the meeting clashed with a 6th Form event. Jackie Mordaunt submitted her
apologies for absence in light of this, but said she would endeavour to join the
meeting part way through if at all possible.

The meeting ended at approximately 20:35

Drafted by: Jacquie Watts
Clerk To The Governors
14-15 October 2025

Approved by The Board of Governors on:

Date: ...cocoevmireirmneenn 15 December 2025....................

Signature (Chair): ......c.oeiiiiiiiieee

Governing Board Page 9 of 9 13 October 2025




